VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative
Representati ve

ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE

HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON FI SHERI ES

March 18, 2014
10: 04 a. m

Paul Seaton, Chair
Eric Feige
Lynn Gattis
Bob Herron
Kurt O son

Crai g Johnson
Jonat han Krei ss-Tonki ns

OTHER MEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve

Shel | ey Hughes

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO.

18

“"An Act providing priority to personal use fisheries when
fishing restrictions are inplenented to achieve a managenent

goal . "

- HEARD & HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 18

SHORT TI TLE: PERSONAL USE FI SHI NG PRI ORI TY
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) STOLTZE, HUGHES, KELLER

01/16/13
01/16/13
01/16/13
03/ 26/ 13
03/ 26/ 13
03/ 26/ 13
03/ 18/ 14

(H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/ 13

(H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
(H) FSH, RES

(H) FSH AT 10: 00 AM CAPI TOL 120

(H) Heard & Held

(H) M NUTE( FSH)

(H)

FSH AT 10: 00 AM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -1- March 18, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE BI LL STOLTZE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 18 as sponsor.

CHARLES SWANTON, Director

Di vision of Sport Fish

Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 18.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

10: 04: 32 AM

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House Special Commttee on
Fisheries neeting to order at 10:04 a.m Represent ati ves
Seaton, Feige, dson, and Gattis were present at the call to
or der. Representative Herron arrived as the neeting was in

progress. Representative Hughes was al so present.

HB 18- PERSONAL USE FI SHI NG PRI ORI TY

10: 05: 00 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 18, "An Act providing priority to personal use
fisheries when fishing restrictions are inplenented to achieve a
managenent goal . "

10: 05: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE Bl LL STOLTZE, Al aska State Legi sl ature,
introduced HB 18, as a joint prime sponsor, explaining that the

proposed bill benefited Al askans and had many of the sane
attributes as subsistence progranms, as it prioritizes personal
use fisheries for Al aska residents. He said that this program
had been "wildly enbraced throughout Southcentral and Interior
Al aska." He relayed that this was his seventh or eighth attenpt
to get this bill through the "inpenetrable" House Special
Conmittee on Fisheries and its different chairnen. He offered

his belief that it was consistent with the Alaska State
Constitution and directed attention to the tens of thousands of
Al aska households that participated in personal use fisheries

and the inportance of this "to the fabric of our state.” He
reported that personal use fisheries was often nentioned to the
Food Policy Council, of which he was a nenber, as it was an

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 2- March 18, 2014



i nportant part of Alaska food security. He said that Al askans
often questioned closure or restriction on local fisheries when

commercial interests were allowed to continue to operate. He
directed attention to the recent spate of e-mails in support of
the proposed bill from "folks all over the state,” including
communities which he did not represent. He reiterated the

continued difficulty for getting simlar bills through "the
i npenetrable walls" of the House Special Committee on Fisheries.
He declared his support for comercial fishing |egislation,
noting that he had been a nenber of the Al aska Seafood Marketing

Institute board for eight years. He said that many Al askans
guestioned why there was not a higher priority for Al aska
resident fisheries. He declared that he would continue to push
this proposed legislation, as "I think I'm on the right side
representing Al askans who participate in our comonly owned
resources.” He offered his belief that the nonmentum and support

was on his side of the issue.

10: 11: 17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS indicated her interest to become a co-
sponsor of the proposed bill. She said that "all Al askans
depend on this type of fishery to fill our freezers." She
opined that this proposed bill had little to do wth the
conmer ci al fisheries, wth the exception that comercial
fishermen were "fillin' their freezers." She declared that this

was an Al askan issue and she voiced her support for HB 18. She
al l owed that she did not question the proposed bill.

CHAI R SEATON asked whether personal wuse fisheries currently
exist in the Mtanuska-Susitna area, and whether there was
support for the establishment of personal use dip net fisheries
in the Susitna drainage.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said that a nunber of personal use
fisheries did exist in the WMitanuska-Susitna, wth the nost
popul ar being Fish Creek, although it had only been opened "a
couple of times over the l|last dozen to 15 years because of
escapenent issues.” He said that an allocation decision had
been made el sewhere and fish were not there. He allowed that
ADF&G had appropriately been very cautious to ensure neeting
conservati on goals. He suggested that the sport fish division
was de-facto managed by the comrercial fisheries nmanager in
Sol dotna "which has a shared wall with the Cook Inlet drifters."”

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 3- March 18, 2014



CHAI R SEATON, restating his question, asked about the intention
for a dip net fishery to include the Susitna drainage area, as
this had a very large silver [coho] sal non run

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE replied that the personal use fishery had
been for sockeye, as coho were considered a sport fish. He
reported on the recent Susitna fishery sport fish activities,
noting that there had not been a king [Chinook] salnmon run. He
did not fish for sockeye in the Susitna drainages. He said that

all the salnon runs had been limted wth date and bait
restrictions. He said the Susitna drainage was not suited for a
personal use fishery. He stated that his bill is a broad

approach for setting the priority for Al aska residents, right
behi nd subsi stence use.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS commented on the dip net fishing activity
that she had observed in the area, and stated that it was "a
famly operation where people are goin' out to fill their
freezers." It is necessary to help people have this
opportunity, and she opined that this was the objective of the
proposed bill.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE characterized the dip netting as a scene
from "The G apes of Wath." He declared that he would rather
Al aska residents have wild Al aska salnon available as protein
i nstead of using food stanps.

CHAIR SEATON pointed to the Kenai River personal use dip net
fishery and asked for clarification that under proposed HB 18,
sport fishing for king salnon would be subservient to persona
use dip netters.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE replied that this would be a nanagenent
deci sion handl ed by ADF&G He offered his belief that the Board
of Fish managed king sal non as a sport fish.

CHAI R SEATQN, paraphrasing from the proposed bill, stated that
restrictions would be placed on all other fisheries before
restrictions were placed on the personal use fisheries.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said that he could not recall a season in
recent years in which restrictions had not been placed on both
the fisheries.

10: 21: 01 AM

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -4- March 18, 2014



REPRESENTATIVE FEIGE cited AS 16.05.251(a), which read as
foll ows:
(a) The Board of Fisheries may adopt
regul ations it considers advisable in accordance wth
AS 44.62 (Adm nistrative Procedure Act) for

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE continued at paragraph (12), which read as
fol |l ows:

(12) regulating commercial, sport, guided
sport, subsistence, and personal use fishing as needed
for the conservation, devel opnent, and utilization of
fisheries;

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE surmised that HB 18 dictated a priority to
the Board of Fish for putting personal use fisheries higher than
others, and he asked for a conpelling reason to renbve an
al | ocati on decision that was nade by the Board of Fish.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE replied that the system was broken and
that the larger reason was his constituent concerns.

CHAIR SEATON asked for an exanple of restrictions on the
personal use fishery that the constituents were concerned about.
He said that the Kenai and Kasilof areas had personal use
opportunities.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE responded that it was the allocation and
prioritization decisions nade by the Board of Fish, as the
percentages were slanted away from personal use prioritization

He declared that there was not even a discussion about the
personal use fishery when the allocation decisions were nmade
wi t hout any review of personal use as a priority. He said that
a reallocation was necessary to stem the concern of residents
who have had negative interactions during the height of the
season and were angered over sharing the resource. He noted
t hat Al aska residents were getting the short shrift,
acknow edgi ng that |arge percentages of the commercial fisheries
were al so Al aska residents. He stated that tens of thousands of
Al aska households participated in the Al aska resident only
personal wuse fisheries. He added that, during the previous
hearing for the proposed bill, regulatory information had been
prom sed, which his office had not received, and he added "I
hope it wasn't blown off."

CHAI R SEATON asked about the regulatory framework of persona
use fisheries, where and how they were established, and nethods

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 5- March 18, 2014



and neans. He requested that the information also be provided
in witing.

10: 27: 55 AM

CHARLES SWANTON, Director, Dvision of Sport Fish, Al aska
Departnment of Fish & Gane, expressed his agreenment with the
sponsor's description of the household participation for the
Cook Inlet personal use fisheries, which included the Kenai,
Kasil of, and Fish Creek. He said that a substantial nunber of
Al askan househol ds participate in these fisheries, primrily for
sockeye sal non. He noted the questions regarding king sal non

and said that there had been restrictions for personal use in
the Kenai for the past two years, as retention had not been
al | oned. He referenced the departnent's guidance specific to
species, and directed attention to the preanble |anguage of the
fisheries managenent plans, which dictated that king and coho
salnon were to be primarily managed for sport fishing, whereas
sockeye sal non were supposed to be nmnanaged for commercial use

He said that dip nets were the primary neans, although there was

a personal use gill net fishery for the Kasil of. He expressed
agreement with Representative Stoltze that ADF&G was first and
forenpst concerned with neeting the escapenent objectives. He

said that the Fish Creek fishery was going through a period of
enhancenent, which had sonewhat confounded the nanagenent.

CHAI R SEATON asked about the requirenment in HB 18 for the Board
of Fisheries to place restrictions on all other fisheries before
restricting the personal use fishery. He asked if that would
require a change in the direction for retention in the persona
use fishery for king salnon in the Kenai and whether this would
allow an opening in the sport fishery if retention in the
personal use fishery was restricted.

MR. SWANTON replied that it would be a decision by the Board of
Fi sh based on its nmanagenent plan.

[HB 18 was hel d over. ]

10: 32: 08 AM

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Special Conmttee on Fisheries neeting was adjourned at 10:32
a. m

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 6- March 18, 2014



